
BOARD OF MEMBERS AGENDA

PAGE
1 CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN, Mark Johnson

2 ROLL CALL - ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM  

3 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4 ADOPTION OF AGENDA

5 APPROVAL OF MINUTES - JUNE 20, 2024 1 - 2

6 OLD BUSINESS - CLARIFYING APRIL 2024 MINUTES   3

7 NEW BUSINESS

A. PUBLIC COMMENT

B. CUSTOMER REQUESTS

C. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD

D. RSA STAFF REPORTS 4 - 16
E. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 17
F. ATTORNEY REPORT

G. CLOSED SESSION

8 ADJOURNMENT

11282 GOVERNMENT CENTER DRIVE, ORANGE, VA 22960

RAPIDAN SERVICE AUTHORITY

18-Jul-24

NOTE:  MEETING TO BE HELD AT THE ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING AT 2:00 PM.  



MINUTES JUNE 20, 2024 

A regular meeting of the Board of Members of Rapidan Service Authority was held on June 20, 2024, at 
the Madison County Administration Building, Madison, VA. 

The meeting was called to order at 2:02 PM. A quorum was established followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

Present: Members: Coppage, Elliott, Marshall, Voorhees 

Staff: G.M. Clemons, D.O. Jarrell, D.A. Gaskins

The agenda for the meeting was adopted on a motion by Elliott, seconded by Marshall, and passed 
unanimously on a voice vote. 

The minutes of the April 18, 2024, meeting was approved on a motion by Voorhees, seconded by Elliott, 
and unanimously passed on a voice vote. 

There was no old business or public comment. There were no customer requests. During the opportunity 
for Board comment, the question was raised about the service line inventory survey's response 
to/progress.  Approximately 210 customers completed the survey, but it appears that not all the 
information given was accurate.  However, RSA will do its best to work with the information provided.  

G.M. Clemons then informed the Board that Greene County had offered to extend the lease at the West 
office.  Since the new West office is not quite finished, G.M. Clemons asked the Board to extend the lease
with Greene County for 60 days under the same terms as previously approved.  On a motion by Elliott,
seconded by Voorhees, the Board voted to authorize G.M. Clemons to extend the lease on a unanimous
roll call vote.

D.A. Gaskins then gave an update on the rate study.  RSA has supplied NewGen with all the necessary
information for them to do a comprehensive study including expected capital improvements as well as 
ongoing operational expenses.  The study is expected to be ready in late August or early September.

D.O. Jarrell then gave an update on the various plant projects.  The Wilderness Water Plant project is
progressing, and Phase 1-A is nearing completion.  The project adds a membrane filtration system to the
sand filters already in place.  The project also provides for a chemical feed building as well as chemical
storage, and the new chemical feed systems should come online soon.  Phase 1-B, which is associated
with the water plant intake, will replace one screen with two and will add a new electrical building.  The
hope is that this portion of the project can be completed in about four months.

The Madison Water Plant project is making progress with temporary tanks on site that should be in use 
shortly.  It is a relatively small project but will mean major improvements for the plant.  The project should 
continue through the end of the year. 

Application for funding for the Madison Wastewater Plant project began two years ago and a response 
on the DEQ WQIF grant is expected soon.  Funding is expected to be a combination of a grant and a loan 
with additional loan funding needed for the new outfall line at the Robinson River.  The engineer who has 
worked on previous RSA projects has given an estimate on this one.  G.M. Clemons is asking the Board for 

1



MINUTES JUNE 20, 2024 

authorization to pursue a detailed design proposal for the plant, which is the next step in the project.  RSA 
is investigating options for river access and has possibilities with VDOT and private landowners.   On a 
motion by Elliott, seconded by Marshall, the Board voted to obtain a detailed design proposal on a 
unanimous roll call vote. 

G.M. Clemons then informed the Board that staff are going over previous lists of plans for capital
improvement projects. We will begin scheduling meetings with Board members in late summer to discuss 
possible projects for their counties.  Projects will be ranked by priority and grouped by expected date.

G.M. Clemons then stated that, as expected, the disinfectant byproducts numbers were high in the second 
quarter for the line running out to Germanna College in Locust Grove.  All customers in the Locust Grove
area (including those not on the Germanna line) will receive a letter explaining the situation.  RSA plans
to clean the water plant clearwell as well as a full system flush before the third quarter sampling.  The
summer is the most difficult time for the problem because of the heat, and since the notification 
requirements are based on a rolling 12-month average, it is not likely that RSA will be able to come into 
total compliance for some time.  Management continues to investigate options for a long-term solution.

G.M. Clemons also mentioned that he has been in discussions with the LOWA regarding developing a 
standard for notification of sewer leaks into their lakes and live streams.  RSA is required to notify DEQ
within 24 hours of a leak.   RSA notifies LOWA as soon as it can about leaks into a lake, but not within any 
set time period. G.M. Clemons indicated that RSA would notify LOWA as quickly as possible.

G.M. Clemons suggested the possibility of a half-day Board retreat, possibly this fall.  This would allow
staff to get a better idea of the Board’s expectations and desired direction for RSA’s future, as well as 
allow the Board to learn more about RSA and get any questions they may have answered.

G.M. Clemons then gave his report.  As was expected, finances are tight, but RSA is still in decent shape.
Water sales are picking up, and the rate study is in progress, which will allow RSA to properly adjust its 
future rates.

Coppage asked about the status of the east office. G.M. Clemons replied that the design is presently 
underway and should be completed soon. 

There was no attorney’s report and with no further business to discuss, on a motion by Marshall, seconded 
by Elliott, the meeting was adjourned at 2:30 p.m. 

_______________________________________ 
Chairman 

2



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: July 16, 2024 

TO: RSA Board of Members 

FROM: Tim Clemons, General Manager 

RE: April 2024 Minutes Clarification 

Upon further review of the approved April 2024 minutes by RSA’s attorney, the report given regarding the 
status of the PFAS issue requires clarification. Below, is the language provide and approved in the April 
2024 minutes. Below that in the boldened, underlined text is the clarified language that should be in the 
minutes of the April 2024 minutes. The General Manager is requesting that the Board accept and approve 
the clarified language regarding PFAS. 

Finally, it appears that RSA will probably be on the low end of the PFAS contamination scale and would 
therefore not need to be a participant in any lawsuits seeking financial aid to mitigate problems connected 
to PFAS. 

RSA is a participant in the PFAS litigation settlement, but it appears that RSA will probably be on 
the low end of the PFAS contamination scale and would therefore not need to receive financial aid to 
mitigate problems connected to PFAS. 

3



4



5



Summary 

VIRGINIA DROUGHT MONITORING TASK FORCE 

Drought Status Report 

July 01, 2024 

On Monday July 1, 2024, the Virginia Drought Monitoring Task Force (DMTF) met to discuss 
the drought indicators identified by the Virginia Drought Assessment and Response Plan. 
Precipitation deficits in combination with increased temperatures have resulted in rapid 

intensification of drought throughout the majority of the Commonwealth. Significant declines in 
surface and groundwater indicators throughout the past thirty-day period have occurred, with 

much below normal observations within the Northern Virginia and Shenandoah drought 

evaluation regions. Soil moisture within the 0-100cm range show exceptional dryness occurring 
throughout the Shenandoah Valley and Northern Virginia regions. The 8-14 day outlook forecasts 
much above average temperatures and chances of normal to above average precipitation. 

Due to below normal precipitation and continued declines of surface and groundwater indicators 
the Task Force recommends maintaining the Drought Watch for the following regions: 

• Big Sandy • Chowan

• Middle James • Eastern Shore

• New River • Northern Coastal Plain

• Northern Piedmont • Southeast Virginia

• Roanoke River • York-Jan1es

• Upper James

Due to rapid declines in surface and groundwater indicators, reported impacts to agriculture, and 
above average temperatures forecasted the Task Force recommends maintaining the Drought 
Warning for the following regions: 

• Shenandoah

• Northern Virginia

The DMTF reviewed the status of drought monitoring and hydrologic conditions in the 

Commonwealth of Virginia. Precipitation over the past 7-14 day period show localized rainfall 

occurring throughout the state from scattered thunderstorms. Precipitation percent of normal over the 

30-60 day period shows exceptional dryness within the Shenandoah Valley and Piedmont regions,

with nearly all of Virginia much below normal. Area-average rainfall since the beginning of the current

water year (October 1, 2023) has remained below long-term normal values for the Big Sandy and

Eastern Shore drought evaluation regions (see DEO website for more info on drought indicators). The

Task Force will continue closely monitoring drought indicator and is scheduled to meet on July 16,

2024.

Streamflow over the past 14-day period has shown widespread declines throughout the 

Commonwealth. Flows are currently below the 25 th percentile for 11 of the 13 drought evaluation 

regions (no surface water flow indicators are present due to tidal influence within the Eastern Shore 

and Southeast Virginia regions). Ten regions are currently below the 10th percentile including the Big 

6



7



8



9



10



11



7/15/24, 1:06 PM Orange County Conditions I Drought.gov 

Current Conditions for Orange County 

U.S. Drought Monitor 

The U.S. Drought Monitor depicts the location 
and intensity of drought across the 
country using 5 classifications: Abnormally Dry 
{DO), showing areas that may be going into or 

are coming out of drought, and four levels of 
drought (Dl-D4). 

The U.S. Drought Monitor is a joint effort of the 
National Drought Mitigation Center, U.S. 
Department of Agriculture, and National 
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration. 

Source(s): NDMC 
(https://www.drought.gov/about/partners/national
d rought-m itigation-center-nd me), NOAA 
(https://www.drought.gov/about/partners/national
ocea n ic-a nd-atmosp heric-ad ministration-
noaa), USDA 
(https://www.drought.gov/about/pa rtners/us-
depa rtment-agricu ltu re-usda) 

Drought Index Water Supply 

Agriculture 

Legend 

Drought & Dryness Categories 

https://www.drought.gov/states/virginia/county/Orange 

12



7/15/24, 1 :06 PM Orange County Conditions I Drought.gov 

% of Orange County 

DO - Abnormally Dry 0% 

Dl - Moderate Drought 65.81% 

D2 - Severe Drought 34.19% 

D3 - Extreme Drought 0% 

D4 - Exceptional Drought 0% 

Total Area in Drought 100.00% 

(Dl-D4) 

Updates 

DATA VALID: 

07 /09/24 

VIEW MORE NATIONAL DROUGHT MAPS 

LEARN MORE 

https://www.drought.gov/states/virginia/county/Orange 

13



7 /15/24, 1 :04 PM Madison County Conditions I Drought.gov

Drought.gov 
National Integrated Drought Information System 

BY LOCATION I COUNTY 

Drought Conditions for Madison County 

GO TO VIRGINIA STATE PAGE (HTTPS://WWW.DROUGHT.GOV/STATES/VIRGINIA, 

Get notified when conditions change 

SIGN UP FOR ALERTS (/DROUGHT-ALERTS/SIGNUP) 

13,308 

people in Madison County are affected by 
drought 

No change since last week 

100% since last month 

1st 

driest June on record, over the past 130 years 

3.18 

inches from normal 

https://www.drought.gov/states/virginia/county/Madison 

100% 

of people in Madison County are affected by 
drought 

No change since last week 

100% since last month 

59th 
driest year to date over the past 130 years 

(January-June 2024) 

0.66 

inches from normal 

14



7/15/24, 1:04 PM Madison County Conditions I Drought.gov 

Current Conditions for Madison County 

U.S. Drought Monitor 

The U.S. Drought Monitor depicts the location 
and intensity of drought across the 
country using 5 classifications: Abnormally Dry 
(DO), showing areas that may be going into or 

are coming out of drought, and four levels of 
drought (Dl-D4). 

The U.S. Drought Monitor is a joint effort of the 
National Drought Mitigation Center, U.S. 
Department of Agriculture, and National 

Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration. 

Source(s): NDMC 
(https://www.drought.gov/about/partners/national

drought-mitigation-center-ndmc), NOAA 
(https://www.drought.gov/about/partners/national

oceanic-and-atmospheric-administration-
noaa), USDA 
(https://www.drought.gov/about/partners/us-
depa rtment-agricu ltu re-usda) 

Drought Index Water Supply 

Agriculture 

Legend 

Drought & Dryness Categories 

https://www.drought.gov/states/virginia/county/Madison 

15



7/15/24, 1 :04 PM Madison County Conditions I Drought.gov 

% of Madison County 

DO -Abnormally Dry 0% 

Dl - Moderate Drought 0% 

D2 - Severe Drought 100.00% 

D3 - Extreme Drought 0% 

D4 - Exceptional Drought 0% 

Total Area in Drought 100.00% 

(Dl-D4) 

Updates 

DATA VALID: 

07/09/24 

VIEW MORE NATIONAL DROUGHT MAPS 

LEARN MORE 

https://www.drought.gov/states/virginia/county/Madison 

16



Operating Income PTD Act PTD Bud Variance YTD Act YTD Bud Variance
Water & Sewer Revenue ‐ Madison Co. 41,564  54,417  (12,854)            270,715              326,504           (55,788)                 
Water & Sewer Revenue ‐ Orange Co. 611,393  645,057  (33,664)            3,271,010           3,870,344        (599,334)              
Sale of Materials & Supplies 1,082  3,250  (2,168)              9,771  19,500             (9,729) 
Engr & Maint Revenue 3,710  2,167  1,543               3,710  13,000             (9,290) 
Service Fees ‐  1,683  (1,683)              ‐  10,100             (10,100)                 
Misc. Income 67,010  28,747  38,263             191,828              172,480           19,348 
Service Installations Revenue 9,900  13,250  (3,350)              109,600              79,500             30,100 

Total Operating Income 734,659  748,571  (13,913)            3,856,634           4,491,427        (634,793)              

Operating Expenses PTD Act PTD Bud Variance YTD Act YTD Bud Variance
Purchased Water 44,082  40,673  (3,408)              237,081              244,041           6,960 
Operating Labor 155,344  185,249  29,905             936,749              1,111,496        174,747               
New Service Installations 11,217  8,333  (2,884)              80,696                  50,000             (30,696)                 
Locations‐Miss Utility 6,225  6,808  583  36,438                  40,850             4,412 
Engineering & Maintenance 91,642  131,883  40,241             872,392              791,300           (81,092)                 
Water Treatment Supp. 38,169  67,467  29,297             356,989              404,800           47,811 
Utilities 66,235  79,146  12,911             464,254              474,875           10,621 
Vehicle Expense 9,753  12,550  2,797               65,134                  75,300             10,166 
Testing 6,350  7,250  900  42,524                  43,500             976 
Biosolids Waste Mgmt 154  4,708  4,554               13,879                  28,250             14,371 
Miscellaneous ‐  166.67  166.67             ‐  1,000.02          1,000.02              

Total Operating Expenses 429,173  544,235  115,063           3,106,136           3,265,412        159,276               

Gross Margin 305,486  204,336  101,150           750,498              1,226,015        (475,517)              

General & Admin Expenses PTD Act PTD Bud Variance YTD Act YTD Bud Variance
Billing & Collection Exp 11,816  12,208  392  55,342                  73,250             17,908 
G & A Labor 103,670  90,825  (12,845)            512,564              544,950           32,387 
Comp. Board of Members 2,099  3,100  1,001               12,093                  18,600             6,507 
Insurance Premiums 596  750  154  3,709  4,500                791 
Bank & Credit Card Fees 795  646  (149)  6,036  3,875                (2,161) 
Offices Expenses 45,379  8,867  (36,512)            94,615  53,200             (41,415)                 
Legal/Bond Fees 6,118  5,317  (801)  29,431  31,900             2,469 
Water Regulatory Fees 8,502  5,375  (3,126)              34,937  32,250             (2,687) 
Audit & Other Consulting ‐  4,792  4,792               11,996  28,750             16,754 

Total General & Admin Expenses 178,974  131,879  (47,095)            760,722              791,275           30,553 

Net Operating Income 126,512  72,457  54,055             (10,225)               434,739           (444,964)              

Non‐Operating Income PTD Act PTD Bud Variance YTD Act YTD Bud Variance
Avail. ‐ Water & Sewer ‐ Madison Co. ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
Avail. ‐ Water & Sewer ‐ Orange Co. 440,000  ‐  440,000           2,550,000           ‐  2,550,000            
Interest Earned 47,199  25,000  22,199             160,524              150,000           10,524 
Non Operating Revenue Cap Contr. ‐  ‐  ‐  149,895              ‐  149,895               
Insurance Recoveries ‐  ‐  ‐  3,500  ‐  3,500 

Total Non‐Operating Income 487,199  25,000  462,199           2,863,919           150,000           2,713,919            

Net Income Before Debt Service 613,711  97,457  516,254           2,853,694           584,739           2,268,955            

Debt Service PTD Act PTD Bud Variance YTD Act YTD Bud Variance
Debt Service ‐  70,695  70,695             47,480                  424,169           376,689               

Net Income  613,711                  26,762                   586,949        2,806,214        160,571         2,645,643         

RAPIDAN SERVICE AUTHORITY
June‐2024

17


	2nd Quarter HAA Exceedance Notification
	April2024
	July Drought Report
	June2024
	Memorandum Clarifying April 2024 Minutes



